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Foreword by the Minister of
Water and Sanitation
The Governing Board of Overberg Water attempted to steer the entity
through treacherous waters over the past 12 months. The Governing Board
has had to make difficult decisions in order to restore the organisation’s
integrity, both to internal and external stakeholders. This notwithstanding,
the Governing Board still had to focus on meeting customer needs and
expectations, strive to achieve the shareholder’s mandate and work
towards the strategic objectives set by Overberg Water.
It is important, now more than ever, that Overberg Water ensures that
it remains effective and efficient. Also, it remains accountable to their
stakeholders, being the water services authorities such as municipalities,
retail and agriculture customers, to ensure that Overberg Water remains
viable and relevant.
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Foreword by the Minister of Water and Sanitation

Thus, it is imperative that the performance of Overberg Water be monitored

I am pleased to present and
attach this Annual Report as
a true reflection of the work
undertaken by Overberg Water,
as per the mandate from the
Department of Water and
Sanitation, to deliver water
to our people. Our gratitude
goes to the Governing Board,
management and employees
of Overberg Water for their
efforts and important work
they continue to undertake.

by the Shareholder’s Compact, as well as the quarterly reports to assess
its performance. We have also regularly met with the Governing Board and
the executive management during the year to reflect on, and review our
expectations against, the key performance indicators. It is my view that
Overberg Water is well located and has a strong geographical presence,
which extends over the Overberg Region and the rest of the Western
Cape. Thus, Overberg Water shall seriously consider further expansion
and growth in its supply area to ensure financial viability and sustainability.
I note that Overberg’s engagement with relevant stakeholders has at times
been challenging and it is therefore on this basis that the organisation will
endeavour to address these shortcomings by improving its communication
through the creation of a communication strategy which will enable sound
communication and dialogue with all the relevant stakeholders.
I am pleased to present and attach this Annual Report as a true reflection
of the work undertaken by Overberg Water, as per the mandate from the
Department of Water and Sanitation, to deliver water to our people. Our
gratitude goes to the Governing Board, management and employees
of Overberg Water for their efforts and important work they continue to
undertake.

Honourable N P Mokonyane
Minister of Water and Sanitation

Interim Accounting Authority and
Acting Chief Executive Officer Report
The Overberg Water Board is one of the many national water public
entities under the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWAS). It exists to
complement the work of the department and primarily support the Minister
as the shareholder. It is a water board providing bulk water services in
terms of the Water Services Act and is subjected to a number of applicable
laws such as the Water Services Act, National Water Act, Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) and National Environmental Management
Act (NEMA). It discharges its services by placing its customers ahead

In one of the South African
languages we normally say

“izandla ziyagezana”
simply translated to mean
that the hands support
each other.

of the delivery menu. It has a long history of service delivery since its
establishment in 1993. It is well known for its good quality water and an
attempt to exceed expectations.
There is no doubt that Overberg Water is continually committed to the
improvement of its service delivery record. Hence, it has noted the
challenges engulfing the financial year under review. Having joined
Overberg Water in July 2017 as part of my secondment by the Minister
of Water and Sanitation there is a reason to believe that the organisation
shall remain an important and strategic player in the water services sector.
This is largely evident when one considers the level of commitment of its
staff and the Department of Water and Sanitation’s support to the entity
Overberg Water to even submit its 2015/16 Annual Financial Statements
on time. There has been a range of internal organisational challenges.
However, these challenges are being attended to and with the support
of the Department of Water & Sanitation there is a ray of hope. This hope
becomes more visible when one considers the Minister’s determination
to ensure that the entity reclaims its place and that it improves its internal
controls without compromising the provision of good quality drinking water.
In one of the South African languages we normally say izandla ziyagezana,
which means that the hands support each other. In this instance it means
the following; the support of the Minister, the Parliamentary Portfolio
Committee of Water and Sanitation, the Department of Water and
Sanitation and customers. This is a step in the right direction. It will indeed
make the Overberg Water live up to its vision which reads as follows:
‘To be the leading water utility in the Western Cape, where
industry and water services authorities outside the metros
can source bulk water services’.

Interim Accounting Authority and Acting Chief Executive Officer Report

in these uncomfortable times. These times have made it impossible for
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The aforementioned is the entity’s inspirational outcome that will assist ‘to
provide high quality water services and make them universally accessible
to all sectors of society and industry’. Hence, the entity, other than focusing
on what is very good at, namely; the provision of good quality drinking

The Overberg Water
Board is one of the many
national water public entities
under the Department of Water
and Sanitation. It is a water
board providing bulk
water services in terms
of the Water Services Act.

water, is now positioning itself to manage sanitation services prioritising
all those plants belonging to the State. Indeed, there is more hope that
Overberg Water is on the right track and that its commitment to excellence
remains uncompromised as the entity plans ahead.
In conclusion, let me express my sincere words of gratitude and
acknowledgment to Overberg Water staff and colleagues, the Ministry,
Department of Water and Sanitation for supporting the entity in these
challenging times.

Phakamani Buthelezi
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Interim Accounting Authority and Acting Chief Executive Officer Report

Acting Chief Executive Officer

Report of the Chief Operating Officer
Introduction
This year marks the 30th anniversary of the construction completion
date of one of the three schemes Overberg Water operates namely, the
Duivenhoks Scheme. The objective of the scheme was to purify and
supply potable water for domestic purposes and for watering of stock.
The scheme also sought to improve the optimum grazing capacity and
the yield of artificial pastures as well as to supply the Heidelberg area
and surrounding towns. We are proud at Overberg Water that we have
operationally maintained this goal as well as exceeding it by supplying
smaller impoverished communities where service delivery is lacking.
Operationally Overberg Water is still a growing entity that requires the
correct skill set to take it forward. The entity recognises that growing
and turning around the entity requires time, patience and resources. It is
therefore on this basis that the entity has brought on board the necessary
resources with the operational experience, professional capacity and skill
set to grow the entity. The past year has manifested the fruits from this
investment into the entity. Overberg Water has performed extremely well
operationally and achieved its operational performance targets (Please
refer to the Annual Performance Review Report as set out on page 16 for
further details.)
Continuous improvements through new interventions and initiatives, i.e.
reducing inefficiencies in the operations, has allowed the entity to achieve
the operational performance targets and furthermore grow steadily and
achieve its strategic goals.

Product Quality and Reliability of Supply
South Africa is currently going through a protracted drought period that
drought has severely affected many communities and industries. In the
Western Cape region, and more so the Overberg region where the entity
operates, we have seen reduced rainfall patterns which has affected dam
levels.
The effects of erratic rainfall within the Overberg region affects the
hydrological patterns, the runoff, ecological and environmental cycles.
These patterns ultimately affect the water quality and reliability of supply.
However, although the environment has been difficult to operate in, the

30th anniversary
of the construction completion
date of one of the three
schemes Overberg
Water operates namely, the
Duivenhoks Scheme.
The objective of the scheme
was to purify and supply
potable water for domestic
purposes and for watering
of stock.

Report of the Chief Operating Officer

has seen several areas being declared drought zones. The effect of the

This year marks the
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entity remains committed to providing excellent quality drinking water to all of the customers and communities
it serves within the region. The continuous upgrades of infrastructure remain pivotal toward providing such
a superior quality of water. For the year under review, Overberg Water has invested in new infrastructure
and maintenance, mainly focusing on upgrades of pumps, strategic pipeline replacements and air valves.
This investment exceeds the global standard of spending by at least a minimum 2% of the asset value on
refurbishment, maintenance and upgrades.
Reliability of supply remained stable over the year and no failures have disrupted supply for more than 24 hours.
No major failures have occurred, apart from intermittent repairs to leaks along certain pipelines. All of these
failures were corrected within a short time span (less than 24 hours) so that uninterrupted high quality water
continued to be supplied to our customers.
As a bulk provider of water, all Overberg Water’s schemes are to comply with standards set out in SANS 241
of 2015. Overberg Water has set key performance indicators (KPIs) that are in line with Blue Drop certification
requirements and its monitoring and testing process far outweigh the minimum as outlined by SANS 241. Audits
completed by the Department of Water and Sanitation indicates that the entity complies with all of the Blue Drop
requirements. Sampling and analyses are carried out using accredited laboratory techniques as Overberg Water
strives for continued excellence in water quality compliance.
For the financial year under review, Overberg Water has provided excellent drinking water quality to its customers.
With 105 non-compliant results, out of approximately 7 578 tests (98.61% achieved), management of water
treatment and its quality has to be applauded. Many of the hydrological difficulties, resulting in non-compliant
operational determinants, are being addressed with continuous upgrades to unit processes.

Operational Resiliency
With the drought having affected the Overberg Water region, the Theewaterskloof Dam and Riviersonderend
River, supplying two of our schemes, have been severely affected. The Western Cape State of Dams as reported
by the Department of Water and Sanitation indicates that the dam level at the end of the period was 33.6% for
Theewaterskloof Dam. It is therefore on this basis that we reasonably managed to mitigate against the weak
rainfall patterns and drought conditions encountered during the period. Operational risks such as catchment
management, abstraction, water treatment works, distribution, water quality and other elements remain a top

8
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priority to the entity.
The Duivenhoks Dam remained in stable condition and recorded a dam level of 100%.

Operational Optimisation
For the year under review, Overberg Water has continued to work towards enhancing the operations by
optimising the chemical dosing and reducing losses within the network. Water loss management measures
remains a priority. It is therefore on this basis that Overberg Water has focused on enhancements throughout the
water network and water treatment plants to maintain the total water loss level below the target of 8%. The entity
has exceeded expectations for the year and achieved a 6.44% avoidable water lost as a percentage of water
produced. In monetary terms, exceeding the targeted 8% has resulted in an operational saving of approximately

R640 000 to the entity. Overberg Water will continue to uphold these and other operational methods, like efficient
water unit process management e.g. filter backwashing, pump operation, pipe replacement programme, etc. to
tie in with Water Conservation Demand Management principles.
Overberg Water is pleased to announce that the upgrade of the Rûensveld East Water Treatment Works
is nearing completion and that the new flocculation channels and rapid gravity sand filters will add to the
improvements made to increase the operational optimisation within the system.

Infrastructure Stability
Infrastructure stability remains pivotal to the entity and therefore the maintenance and upgrades of key
infrastructure remained a priority. Funding however remains a challenge to the entity, particularly with the entity
not receiving any external subsidies and grants. It is on this basis that the following infrastructure was completed
and executed as planned during the year.

The key projects in award and tender are:
• The upgrading of the Rûensveld East Water Treatment Works
• The upgrading of two existing high-lift pumps at the Rûensveld East Water Treatment Works
• The replacement of existing air valves throughout all schemes
• The replacement of existing pipelines throughout the schemes.

Community and Environmental Sustainability
Community sustainability and initiatives are important to the entity. Overberg Water has managed to team up
with the Department of Water and Sanitation to create awareness programmes and initiatives throughout the
Overberg Region by distributing literature, water saving tips and equipment. The ‘Drop a Block’ campaign,
launched during Water Week by the department, formed part of these initiatives.

Health and Safety
Health and safety remains a priority to Overberg Water, with a particular focus on fostering a safe and healthy
work environment. For the year under review no serious harm has been caused to employees, apart from
several minor injuries.

Looking ahead, the entity intends completing several projects to further enhance the operations, maintain the
networks and processes and improve the outputs to its customers. To achieve these deliverables and goals, the
entity intends spending approximately 8 million on operational improvements. The major improvements include,
inter alia: upgrading of rapid gravity sand filters, access roadways, valves, pump stations, pipelines and vehicle
fleet.

Report of the Chief Operating Officer

The Future
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Moreover, the entity will be upgrading its information technology systems and telemetric infrastructure to improve
the management of the entity’s infrastructure in the future.

Conclusion
In conclusion, with the current economic and environmental conditions within which the entity operates,
Overberg Water will be leveraging its investment into resources, capital and operational upgrades. From an
operational perspective, the entity is confident that it will remain sustainable and continue to produce excellent
performance and results, which will be underpinned by empowerment and service delivery to our shareholder
and customers. Value creation through sound operational management will remain key, now and in the future.

Clint Stewart
Pr.Tech Eng, MWISA, MBE (Wits)
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Chief Operating Officer

Report of the Chief Financial Officer
I have the pleasure of submitting the report of the CFO for the financial
year under review.

Results for the Year
The results for the year are adequately set out in the Annual Financial

I have the pleasure of
submitting the report of
the CFO for the financial
year under review.

Statements.

Financial Performance
The net income for the year of R4.4 million (2015: R5.7 million) reflects a

Costs of potable water
per volumes sold

substantial decrease year on year. The net income of the entity decreased
during the current year as there was no tariff increase and a provision was

2016 FY

made for the refurbishment of rain water harvesting tanks.

R4 253 126

– 0.40%
CHANGE

2015 FY
R4 270 113

TABLE 1: Costs of potable water per volumes sold
2016 FY
Total volume water sold – kl
Costs of potable water
(excluding depreciation)

2015 FY

% Change

4 253 126

4 270 113

– 0.40%

R24 608 826

R22 443 335

9.65%

R5.79

R5.26

10.08%

Costs per kl

Direct costs of purification and distribution per volume sold increased from

Total volume water sold – kl

2016 FY
R24 608 826

the previous year, reflecting the increases in the major cost drivers, being

2015 FY

9.65%

R22 443 335

CHANGE

chemicals, energy, labour and repairs and maintenance.

Costs of potable water
Other operating and administration expenses reflects a consumer price

(excluding depreciation)

index increase.

Infrastructure Funding
the year under review, Overberg Water did not receive any infrastructure

2016 FY
R5.79

10.08%
CHANGE

grants and/or subsidies from government or its shareholder. The current
working capital generated is not sufficient to fund the infrastructure
development plans.
The entity has identified a number of projects to expand its footprint and
infrastructure development and will actively be exploring other funding
mechanisms such as external borrowing.

Costs per kl

2015 FY
R5.26

Report of the Chief Financial Officer

Infrastructure funding still remains a challenge to Overberg Water. For
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Asset Valuation
An independent valuation of Overberg Water’s assets was carried out as
at 30 June 2015. The valuation by independent experts revealed that the
value of infrastructure owned by the entity is estimated to be in the order
of R1.4 billion (the current financial statement carrying value is R57 million).
The assets were revalued on a depreciated replacement cost basis. This
valuation cannot be incorporated into the Annual Financial Statements as
the depreciation charge on the revalued assets is far too large and would
result in losses for Overberg Water.

Tariffs
Due to the regulation of the tariffs, Overberg Water did not receive a tariff
increase during the year under review.
The tariffs set must ensure the sustainability of the entity at current
production levels.
The water tariffs charged should allow for the following:

• Repayment and servicing of debt
• Recovery of capital, operational and maintenance costs
• Reasonable provision for depreciation of assets
• Recovery of costs associated with the repayment of capital from
Revenues over time

• Reasonable provision for future capital requirements and expansion.
Thus, in setting its tariff pricing structure, the following underlying principles
are adopted:

• The promotion of the efficient and sustainable use of water
• The equitable access to water supply services, whereby the basic
water service should be affordable

12
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• The solvency and sound financial management of Overberg Water.

Overberg Water did not receive any grants or revenue allocations from
government and/or its shareholder for the year under review. Therefore,
all operational costs and capital expenditure must be recovered through
the tariff.
The annual tariff review process is required for bulk municipal customers in
terms of Section 42 of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) and
Circular 23 issued by National Treasury (NT). This process encompasses
the principle of consultation and transparency and aims to assist Overberg
Water’s municipal stakeholders with their long term planning.

Debt Management
Trade receivables, net of impairments, decreased year on year.
The entity manages its debt by its stakeholder engagements and by
monitoring slow payers. The current debtors’ days are 60 days (2015: 65
days), which is significantly higher than the planned performance target.
Certain municipal customers have lodged disputes in terms of S44 of
the MFMA. As soon as slow payers are identified from the industrial and
agricultural customers, arrangements are made by negotiation and an
instalment plan agreed upon. Should the terms hereof not be complied
with, water restrictions are introduced until payments are made in terms of
the repayment agreements.

Office of the Chief Financial Officer
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Corporate Governance
Overview
The role of the Governing
Board was focusing

on strategic matters

and ensuring organisational
conformance to legal, statutory
and regulatory requirements.
In addition, the Board had
a key role in ensuring
performance of
management toward
strategy implementation and
ensuring that executive

succession
planning is conducted.

There were seven individuals serving on Overberg Water’s Board of
Directors. The Minister of Water and Sanitation appointed the members
to serve for a four-year term, effective from May 2014. Their terms ended
in June 2017 when the Minister terminated their services as Governing
Board members for Overberg Water. The Governing Board was comprised
of professionals representing a diverse array of talent in business, farming,
engineering, legal and academic sectors. Board members were chosen
for their diversity of experience and perspective in order to support the
Overberg Water through sharing best practices in the entity.
Mr Mpumelelo Ncwadi was the Chairperson of the Governing Board whilst
Mr Noel Bastiaan was the Deputy-Chairperson of the Governing Board.
The Governing Board was responsible for providing strategic leadership
through ensuring that the mission, policies, financial resources and stability
and legal integrity of the organisation were exercised and implemented in
an effective manner. The Governing Board approved the strategic direction;
annual plans and budgets; an annual independent audit; a performance
management system which supported overall compensation and
personnel benefits and the recruitment and appointment of the executive
management. Three Board Committees met outside of board meetings
and reported to the full Governing Board during its ordinary and special
board meetings. The Audit and Risk Committee reviewed the annual audit
of the entity, recommended auditors to the full board and ensured the
entity’s adherence to the prescripts of the Public Finance Management
Act (PFMA). During the year under review, the Governing Board took
a decision to combine the Audit and Risk Committee and the Finance
and Procurement Committee into one committee, wherein the reviews

14
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of the financial health of the organisation, and adherence to the PFMA,

procurement policy, National Treasury rules and regulations would be handled by a combined committee. The
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee assisted the Governing Board to discharge its responsibilities
regarding remuneration and HR policies and other related matters.

Ethical Leadership and Code of Ethics
The Governing Board of Overberg Water aimed to highest standards of business integrity, ethical leadership,
and good governance. Although the entity did not have a board’s approved Code of Ethics, the Governing
Board nevertheless recognised that it was responsible for ensuring that Overberg Water conducts its business
in a manner that is accountable, transparent and fair to all its stakeholders.
The role of the Governing Board was focused on strategic matters and ensuring organisational conformance
to legal, statutory and regulatory requirements. In addition, the board had a key role in ensuring performance
of management in strategy implementation and ensuring that executive succession planning was conducted.

Compliance with Laws, Rules, Codes, Guidelines and Ethical
Standards
The Governing Board of Overberg Water considered compliance with laws, rules, codes, guidelines and ethical
standards to be the right way of doing business. It was for this reason that the Governing Board had a Board
Charter, drawn up in terms of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) and the Public Finance Management
Act (Act 1 of 1999).
The Charter concisely articulates the overview of the following:

• The demarcation of the roles, functions, responsibilities and powers of the Governing Board,
individual board members, the executives of the Entity and the shareholder of Overberg Water Board
(the Department)

• The powers delegated to various committees of the Governing Board
• The policies and practices of the Governing Board in respect of matters such as corporate governance,
declarations and conflicts of interest, board meeting documentation, procedures, nomination,
appointment, induction, training and evaluation of directors and members of Board Committees

• The division of labour between the Governing Board and its committees, ensuring that risk exposure is
sufficiently managed.

Corporate Governance
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Annual Performance Review Report
Based on audited results for the financial year ended 30 June 2016
The Annual Performance Review of the key performance indicators as set out in the Shareholder’s Compact is
set out in the table below:

TABLE 2: 2015/2016 Annual Performance Review
Annual Performance Targets

Organisational Efficiency and
Effectiveness

Performance
Perspective

Performance
Objective

Outcome/ Impact

Indicators/
Calculation

Financial Performance

Annual Performance Review Report

I

Projected
Target
2015/16

Actual
Target

Actual
Previous
Year

Notes

% achieved

98%

98.61%

99.48%

1.1

1

Bulk potable water
quality compliance

Water quality
standards met

Test results,
SANS 241

2

Manage avoidable
water losses

Reduced avoidable
water losses in
treatment and
distribution systems

Avoidable water lost
as a percentage of
water produced

%

8.75%

6.44%

9.80%

1.2

3

Reliability of supply

No unplanned
interruptions to bulk
supply exceeding
24 hours

Number of days’
supply interrupted as
a % of possible
supply days

%

0%

0%

0%

1.3

4

Increased access
to services

Contribution to
national objectives of
extending services

Actual CAPEX spend
on expansion-related
projects (initiatives
by the Minister) as %
of budget

%

n/a

n/a

n/a

1.4

5

Financial reporting
compliance

Unqualified audit
report

Annual external audit

Unqualified
report with
no matters of
emphasis
(clean audit)

Unqualified

Disclaimer

Unqualified

2.1

Ratio

500%

163%

229%

Gross profit margin
% (primary activity)

%

30%

37%

39%

Gross profit margin
(secondary activity)

%

n/a

n/a

n/a

Net profit margin
(primary activity)

%

4%

11%

16%

Net profit margin
(secondary activity)

%

n/a

n/a

n/a

Ratio

4%

0%

–

%

5%

4%

6%

Number

40

60

65

Repairs and
maintenance as
% of PPE and
investment property
(carrying value)

%

3%

2%

–

Staff remuneration as
% of total operating
expenditure

%

13%

15%

–

Current ratio

16

Measure

6

Improve key financial
ratios

Improved viability
and sustainability

Debt equity
Return on assets
Debtors days

2.2

Continued …

Annual Performance Targets

Organisational Capacity

Customer/Stakeholder Interaction

Financial Performance

Performance
Perspective

Performance
Objective

Measure

Projected
Target
2015/16

% achieved

50%

Actual
Target

Actual
Previous
Year

Notes

97%

2.3

2.4

7

Increase BBBEE
expenditure relative to
operational projects

Spend increased in
the financial year

Spend

8

Manage costs within
the approved budget

Actual expenditure
compared with
budgeted expenditure
for the quarter

Financial reports

%
increased

–0.05

–25%

–1%

Overall project
expenditure within
R target

% variance

10%

n/a

n/a

Overall project
completion dates
within targets

% variance

10%

n/a

n/a

9

Capital expenditure
programme

Infrastructure
available to meet
demands

2.5

10

Engagement in
secondary activities

Growth in turnover
from secondary
(other activities)

% of total turnover

%

n/a

n/a

0.23%

2.6

11

Bulk supply
agreements concluded
with municipalities/
other customers

Statutory and service
level agreements
in place

Municipalities/Other
customers with bulk
supply agreements

%

100%

0%

0%

3.1

12

Implementation of
ministerial directives

New ministerial
directives issued are
implemented on time

Progress against
implementation plan

%

Nil

n/a

n/a

3.2

13

Support rural
development

Total number of
identified municipalities
supported

Signed contracts,
MOUs etc

Number

2

0

2

3.3

14

Achieve statutory
reporting compliance

All statutory reports
submitted on time

Submission dates
met

%

100%

75%

100%

3.4

15

Staff levels

Optimal staff retention

Staff turnover

%

10%

10%

8.33%

4.1

Learnerships

Number

3

0

–

Bursaries employees

Number

2

16

11

Graduate
programmes

Number

0

n/a

–

Permanent and
contract (direct)

Total number

Number

25

10

37

Temporary (indirect)

Total number

Number

27

61

2

%

95%

67%

97.53%

16

17

Training and skills
development

Jobs created

Board effectiveness

Skills and capacity
building

Improved
performance of
fiduciary duties/
governance

Board member
attendance of all
board/committee
meetings
Decision making: %
number resolutions
taken by the board
vs number of
resolutions required

4.2

4.3

5.1
%

95%

See note

n/a

Number of
repeat
findings

0

See note

0

Number of
unresolved
findings

0

See note

0

External audit
findings dealt with

20

Good governance

Improved controls
and risk mitigation

Breaches of materiality
and significance
framework

Number

0

See note

0

5.3

21

Corporate social
responsibility
initiatives

Good corporate
citizenship

Number of initiatives
undertaken

Number

5

5

3

5.4

19

External audit report

5.2

I

Effective controls
and risk
management

Annual Performance Review Report
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General Performance

Outcome/ Impact

Indicators/
Calculation

17

1. Operational Efficiency and Effectiveness
1.1 Water quality compliance
As a bulk water provider, Overberg Water’s schemes are to comply with standards set out in SANS 241 of 2011.
Water quality is managed rigorously against ISO 9001 and stringent systems are in place to make sure these are
met. Overberg water has set key performance indicators that are in line with Blue Drop certification requirements
and its monitoring and testing process far outweigh the minimum as outlined by SANS 241. Sampling and
analyses are carried out using accredited laboratory techniques as far as possible. Overberg Water strives for
continued excellence in water quality compliance as evident in Table 2.

TABLE 3: 2015/2016 Potable water quality compliance with SANS 241:2011

Compliance (%) with SANS 241:2011
Acute Health:
Microbiological

100%

100%

100%

100%

Acute Health:
Chemical

100%

100%

100%

100%

Chronic Health

100%

99.82%

100%

99.95%

Operational

97.46%

97.46%

Aesthetic

97.87%

100%

0

50

100

150

96.61%

96.06%

99.85%

200

250

99.29%

300

350

400

WaterWorks

Ruensveld West

Ruensveld East

Duivenhoks

Overall

For the 2015/16 financial year, Overberg Water has provided excellent drinking water quality to its customers
in all 5 risk indicators, with only 105 non-compliant results out of 7 578 tests and with no failures registered as
E.coli. This results in overall compliance of 98.61%.

18

I

Annual Performance Review Report

Explanation of the results is contained in Table 2.

TABLE 4: Classification of drinking water supply systems according to SANS 241: 2015
Population up to 100 000

Population > 100 000

Proportion of samples compliant

Proportion of samples compliant

Excellent

Good

Unacceptable

Excellent

Good

Unacceptable

Microbiological
Health

≥97%

≥95%

<95%

≥99%

≥97%

<97%

Chronic Health

≥95%

≥93%

<93%

≥97%

≥95%

<95%

Operational

≥93%

≥90%

<90%

≥95%

≥93%

<93%

Aesthetic

≥93%

≥90%

<90%

≥95%

≥93%

<93%

1.2 Manage avoidable water losses
Overberg Water has, over the years, successfully maintained non-revenue
water below 15% and managed to bring it down to under 10% at the close
of the current financial year. This has largely been a result of billing and
metering strategies which focus on prompt monthly meter readings of all
network points, ensuring meter and calculation accuracy and an efficient
debt collection process.

1.3 Reliability of supply
Reliability of supply remained stable over the year. We can report that no
failures have disrupted supply for more than 24 hours. No major failures
have occurred, apart from some power outages at the various schemes
(water treatment works) due to planned/unplanned electricity maintenance
and repairs to leaks along certain pipelines.

1.4	Increased access to services

the organiSation
reduced its nonrevenue water to
below 10%.

10%

Increased access to water services has been achieved by increasing
volumes of potable water in reservoirs by optimising existing capacities.
The implementation of the capital expenditure programme of R11 million
has been implemented and commissioning of the new infrastructure is
expected in September 2016. There was a delay in the commencing of the
project. However this project was not initiated by the Minister.

2. Financial Performance
2.1 Financial reporting compliance
The 2016 audit of Overberg received a disclaimer audit opinion. This is due
to instability that Overberg had on the last financial year from governance
point of view. There has been changes in the leadership which affected the
control environment.
Overberg has received an unqualified audit opinion in the previous financial
years.

Certain key financial ratios reflect the entity’s current financial performance,
as set out below:

Liquidity:
The current ratio has decreased as the long term investments, which were
previously recorded as cash and cash equivalents, have been reallocated
to non-current assets. The Corporate Plan budget and the Shareholders
Compact key performance indicators are therefore not aligned to the
Annual Financial Statements as included in the Annual Report and the
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accounting records of the entity.
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2.2	Improve key financial ratios

Gross profit margin percentage:
The increase is due to cost savings which have been realised with new suppliers used.

Net profit margin percentage:
The increase is due to key positions which have not yet been filled and cost savings on certain expense items.

Debt equity ratio:
The entity does not have any interest-bearing long term debt.

Return on assets percentage:
The return on assets is due to cost savings achieved, unfilled vacant positions and decreases in certain
expenditures. The current tariff model does not allow for any return on assets.

Debtors’ days:
Debtors’ days have decreased due to the payment made by certain municipalities. This is an improvement in
debt collection, as Overberg Water is ensuring that customers pays the accounts on time. However, the capital
levies charged to Theewaterskloof Municipality is still under dispute. A S44 dispute in terms of the Municipal
Finance Management Act is in progress.

TABLE 5: Financial performance key indicators
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE KEY INDICATORS

2016

2015

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE (R’000)
Revenue
Cost of potable water
Gross income
General and administration expenses
Operating income
Other income
Net interest income
Net income for the year

42 267
26 690
15 577
14 351
1 226
897
2 321
4 444

41 932
25 426
16 506
13 763
2 743
1 088
1 873
5 704

63%
37%

60%
39%

33%
2%
10%

35%
2%
10%

4 253 126

4 270 113

R9.65

R9.49

26 690
24 446

25 426
22 454

R6.30
R5.71

R5.95
R5.26

58

62

73 330

68 873
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PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Cost of sales percentage
Gross profit margin percentage
General and administration expenses percentage
Operating income percentage
Net income percentage
WATER INDICATORS
Treated water volume (in kl ’000)
Average water tariff (R/kl)
Cost of production (R’000)
Cost of production (R’000) (excluding depreciation)
Average water cost/volume sold
Average water cost (excluding depreciation)/volume sold
Number of employees
Kilolitres sold per employee

Continued …

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE KEY INDICATORS

2016

2015

OPERATING RISK INDICATORS
Operating costs (R’000)
Depreciation (R’000)
Working ratio
Gross profit margin percentage

39 424
2 379

39 556
3 120

88%
37%

90%
39%

94 450
102 949
27 874
57 760
17 315
10 615
9 295
1 115
6 544
4 300

88 597
93 206
26 096
54 439
12 207
5 301
3 950
1 256
5 643
3 486

FINANCIAL POSITION (R’000)
Funds and reserves
Total assets
Investments
Assets excluding investments
Current assets
Current liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories
Trade debtors
Trade creditors

TABLE 6: Financial position key indicators
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE KEY INDICATORS

2016

2015

FINANCIAL RISK INDICATORS
Current ratio

2

2

Asset test ratio

2

1

Revenue

42 267

41 932

Cost of potable water

OPERATING RISK INDICATORS

26 690

25 426

Depreciation

2 379

3 120

Operating income

1 226

2 743

324

–150

4 444

5 704

5%

4%

10%

2%

Debtors collection period (days)

60

65

Creditors (days)

58

50

Bad debts and impairments of trade debtors
Net income for the year
Return on assets
Return on turnover

Data is not available at present.

2.4 Manage costs within the approved budget
The approved budget was compiled based on the entity becoming a regional water utility. Overberg Water has
not yet become a regional water utility. Therefore, anticipated revenues (from secondary activities) are lower than
expected and the costs relating to those revenue streams are also reduced.

Annual Performance Review Report

2.3	Increase BBBEE expenditure relative to projects
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2.5 Capital expenditure programme
Overberg Water’s capital expenditure programme commenced, but was not completed by the year end due to
the construction completion date.

2.6 Engagement in secondary activities
The entity is not involved in any secondary activities at present.

3. Customer/Stakeholder Interaction
3.1 Bulk supply agreements concluded with municipalities
Bulk supply agreements were submitted to the Water Services Authority and still need to be signed off.

3.2 Achieve statutory reporting compliance
The following reports were submitted during the year under review.

3.2.1 Department of Water and Sanitation
• Quarterly reports of key performance indicators
• Annual Report 2015
• Corporate plan 2015/2016

3.2.3 National Treasury
• Quarterly reports for Public Entities
• 2015 Medium Term Expenditure Framework
• 2015 Public Entity Consolidation Template
• 2015 Estimates of National Expenditure – Public Entities Input
• Monthly monitoring of Bulk Resource Payments (Municipalities)
• Annual Report 2015
• Corporate plan 2015/2016

3.2.3 Stats SA
• Quarterly employment statistics
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All the required reports have been submitted for the year under review.

3.3 Support rural development compliance
Due to internal resource constraints within the entity, no formal support agreements were signed between the
Water Services Authority and the entity.

3.4 Achieve statutory reporting compliance
Due to resource constraints, the fourth quarterly report was submitted excluding the financial data.

4. Organisational Capacity
4.1 Staff levels
During the year under review the staff turnover was below the target set for the financial year. Critical vacancies
were filled towards the latter part of the year. These will include the appointment of a Human Resources Manager,
Process Controllers and an accountant. There are, however, several vacancies open that need to be filled within
the finance and operation divisions. The operational workforce remained stable during the year. However, in the
finance department several resignations occurred.

4.2. Training and skills development
Human Capital Development through training and skills development remains paramount for Overberg Water.
For the year under review, several bursaries continued from the previous financial year where staff were given
the opportunity to complete secondary schooling and ultimately achieve a matric qualification.

4.3 Jobs created
For the year under review, Overberg Water was not able to meet the target set to create 25 permanent and
contract (direct) appointments due to financial constraints and not having acquired new assets or infrastructure.
The appointments made during the financial year under review included key staff members, such as the Human
Resources Manager, Process Controllers, accountant and several contract staff.
In addition, Overberg Water has managed to create other temporary jobs (indirect) during the construction and
refurbishment of the Ruensveld East Project.

5. General Performance
5.1 Board member attendance
Board member attendance was satisfactory during the year under review. With no Company Secretary being
available, it was not possible to determine the number of resolutions implemented. The board is currently
exploring options to resource the vacant Company Secretary position.

TABLE 7: Board member attendance
Audit & Risk Management
Committee

HR & Remuneration
Committee

Mr M. Ncwadi

3

1

2

Ms Kim Montgomery

2

1

0

Mr A. Smuts

1

0

0

Adv D. Block

2

0

1

Mr N. Bastiaan

0

0

0

Mrs M. Zass

2

0

1

Mrs N. Dhevcharran

3

1

0

Annual Performance Review Report
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Board Members
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TABLE 8: Decision making: % number resolutions
Meeting

Meeting Type

No. of Members

No. of Attendees

%

1

Board meeting

7

5/7

71%

2

Board meeting

7

4/7

57%

3

Board meeting

7

3/7

43%

1

Audit meeting

3

3/3

100%

1

HR & Remco

3

2/3

67%

2

HR & Remco

3

2/3

67%

3

HR & Remco

3

2/3

67%

Average

67%

5.2 Effective controls and risk management
During the year under review, several interventions were introduced. These include, inter alia: the introduction of
the new internal controls systems by the Chief Financial Officer, the advertisement for the Supply Chain Manager
and the appointment of the HR Manager.

5.3 Good governance
Due to limited internal audit function, no bridges of materiality and significance were reported by the Combined
Audit, Risk and Finance Committee and the Chief Financial Officer.

5.4 Corporate social responsibility initiatives
The corporate social responsibility initiatives for the year include the following items:

TABLE 9: Corporate social responsibility initiatives
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Detail

Number of initiatives undertaken

Water Week – Roadblock

1

Water Week – Drop a Block

1

Water Week – River cleaning

1

Water Week – School scheme visit (R-Wes)

1

Water Week - School scheme visit (Duiv)

1

Total

5
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General Information
Country

South Africa

Nature of business and principal activities	Overberg Water is a water board established in terms of Section 28
of the Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997) and is an unincorporated
government business entity according to Schedule 3B of the Public
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended.
Accounting Authority/Board members

Mr M. Ncwadi (Chairperson)
Mr N. H. Bastiaan (Deputy Chairperson)
Adv. D. J. Block
Ms N. Dhevcharran
Mrs K. E. Montgomery
Mr M. A. Smuts
Ms M. P. Zass

Executive management

Ms O. N. V. Fundakubi (Acting Chief Executive)
Ms A. Cilliers (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr C. Stewart (Chief Operating Officer)

Corporate office

1st Floor, Trident Park 2
1 Niblick Way
Somerset West
7130

Business address

5 Demper Street
Caledon
7230

Postal address

P O Box 1005
Somerset Mall
7137

Bankers

ABSA Bank Ltd

	The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016
confirms a Total Comprehensive Income for the year of R 4 476 821.
The Statement of Financial Position indicates a 10.45% increase in
the total equity and liabilities. In addition, the entity’s investments
(reserves) have increased for the year and amount to R27 689 082
(see note 4.1). The investments are set aside, including, but not
limited to, any emergency and capital expenditure.
Auditor-General South Africa

Entity registration number

22078092 in terms of the National Water Act (Act 36 of 1998)

Preparer of the financial statements	The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared under the
supervision of A. Cilliers CA (SA)
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Report of the Auditor-General to Parliament on
Overberg Water Board
Report on the Audit of the financial statements
Disclaimer of opinion
1.

I was engaged to audit the financial statements of the Overberg Water Board set out on pages 42 to 71, which
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2016, and the Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, as well as
the Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2.

I do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the Overberg Water Board. Because of the
significance of the matters described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of my report, I have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
financial statements.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
Property, plant and equipment
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3.

The entity did not recognise all items of property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 16, Property,
plant and equipment. The entity did not separately recognise significant components of water infrastructure
and apply different useful lives for depreciation purposes. As a result, I was unable to determine the impact
on the net carrying amount of plant and equipment, the related depreciation, the impact on the surplus for
the period, comparative figures and on accumulated surplus as it was impracticable to do so. The impact
on the Notes to the Financial Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could
also not be determined.

4.

The entity did not determine whether property plant and equipment was impaired in accordance with
IAS 36, Impairment of assets. Indicators of impairment were not assessed by theentity at the end of the
reporting period based on reports produced by a management expert, and the possible impairment loss
was also not assessed by the entity. As a result, I was unable to determine the impact on the net carrying
amount of plant and equipment, impairment loss, impact on the surplus, for the period and on accumulated
surplus as it was impracticable to do so. The impact on the Notes to the Financial Statements, Statement
of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also not be determined.

5.

The entity did not review the residual values and useful lives of movable equipment and furniture at each
reporting date in accordance with IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment. As a result, certain of these
assets had a zero net carrying amount while still being in use. I was unable to determine the impact on the
net carrying amount of movable equipment and furniture and comparative figures as it was impracticable to
do so. Furthermore, assets with a zero net carrying amount that were no longer in use were not disposed
of in accordance with IAS16, Property, plant and equipment. The impact on the Notes to the Financial
Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also not be determined.

6.

In addition, buildings used in water purification schemes were not disclosed as a separate class of asset
within the property plant and equipment note to the financial statements. I was unable to determine the
impact on the net carrying amount of plant and equipment, depreciation, surplus for the period, comparative
figures and accumulated surplus as it was impracticable to do so. The impact on the Notes to the Financial
Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also not be determined.

Inventory
7.

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for the measurement of the cost of inventory of
maintenance and emergency spares, based on the weighted average cost formula, as required by the
entity’s accounting policy, due to the status of the accounting records. I was unable to calculate the
measurement of the cost of inventory based on the weighted average cost formula by alternative means.
Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary to inventory stated at a
carrying value of R1 115 337 (2015: R1 255 942) in note 5 to the financial statements. The impact on the
Notes to the Financial Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also
not be determined.

Trade and other payables
8.

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for trade and other payables recognised, due to the
status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the amounts recorded by the entity for trade and
other payables by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was
necessary to trade and other payables stated at a carrying value of R8 717 245 (2015: R5 250 835) in note
9 to the financial statements. The impact on the Notes to the Financial Statements, Statement of Changes
in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also not be determined.

9.

I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for revenue recognised, due to the status of the
accounting records. I was unable to confirm the amounts recorded by the entity for revenue by alternative
means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary to revenue stated
at R42 267 338 (2015: R41 932 989) in note 11 to the financial statements. The impact on the Notes to
the Financial Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also not be
determined.

Costs of potable water
10. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for costs of potable water recognised, due to the
status of the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the amounts recorded by the entity for costs of
potable water by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was
necessary to costs of potable water stated at R26 690 206 (2015: R25 426 719) in note 12 to the financial
statements. The impact on the Notes to the Financial Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Cash Flow Statement could also not be determined.
11. Furthermore, the entity did not record all transactions for the year under review for goods and services
relating to costs of potable water. This resulted in the costs of potable water, as disclosed in the
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Statement of Financial Performance, being understated by R298 456. I was unable to determine whether
any other account balances or classes of transactions may be affected. Consequently, the impact on the
Notes to the Financial Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also
not be determined.

Employee costs
12. I was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence for employee costs recognised, due to the status of
the accounting records. I was unable to confirm the amounts recorded by the entity for employee costs
by alternative means. Consequently, I was unable to determine whether any adjustment was necessary
to employee costs stated at R5 390 110 (2015: R5 993 081). The impact on the Notes to the Financial
Statements, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement could also not be determined.
13. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor-General’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my report.
14. I am independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA code) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to my audit in South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the IESBA code.
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15. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.

Emphasis of Matters
16. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Material impairments
17. As disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements, the water board provided for impairment of trade and
other receivables amounting to R1 336 922 (2015: R1 013 023).

Restatement of corresponding figures
18. As disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2015 have been
restated as a result of errors detected in the financial statements of the water board at, and for the year
ended, 30 June 2016.

Subsequent events
19. As disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, the board was terminated by the Minister of Water and
Sanitation on 21 June 2017. A new Chief Executive Officer was appointed on 26 June 2017 and resumed
duties on 4 July 2017. The Chief Executive Officer will act as the accounting authority (AA) until such time
as a new board is appointed by the Minister of Water and Sanitation.

Other Matters
20. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Previous year audited by a predecessor auditor
21. The financial statements of the previous year were audited by a predecessor auditor in terms of section 4(3)
of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) on 29 September 2015.

Responsibilities of the Accounting Authority
22. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act (PFMA) and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
23. In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention either to liquidate the trading entity or to
cease operations, or there is no realistic alternative but to do so.

24. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
25. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in the annexure
to the auditor’s report.
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Report on the Audit of the Annual Performance Report
Introduction and Scope
26. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general
notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings on the reported performance
information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the Annual Performance
Report. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
27. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on the approved
performance planning documents of the entity. I have not evaluated the completeness and appropriateness
of the performance indicators included in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to
any disclosures or assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future
periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information. Accordingly, my findings do
not extend to these matters.
28. I evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in accordance with the
criteria developed from the performance management and reporting framework, as defined in the general
notice, for the following selected objectives presented in the Annual Performance Report of the entity for
the year ended 30 June 2016:
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Objectives

Pages in annual performance report

Objective 1 – Bulk potable water quality compliance

Page 16

Objective 2 – Manage avoidable water losses

Page 16

Objective 3 – Reliability of supply

Page 16

Objective 4 – Increased access to services

Page 16

Objective 5 – Financial reporting compliance

Page 16

Objective 7 – Improve key financial ratios

Page 17

Objective 9 – Capital expenditure programme

Page 17

Objective 11 – Bulk supply agreements concluded with municipalities

Page 17

Objective 18 – Board effectiveness

Page 17

Objective 21 – Good governance

Page 17

29. I performed procedures to determine whether the reported performance information was properly
presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved performance planning documents.
I performed further procedures to determine whether the indicators and related targets were measurable
and relevant, and assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it
was valid, accurate and complete.
30. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected objectives are as follows:

Objective 1 – Bulk Potable Water Quality Compliance
Test results, SANS 241
31. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information
(FMPPI).
32. The strategic objective was reported as the percentage achieved on test results, while the planned strategic
objective had an approved target measuring the percentage compliant test results in the corporate plan.

Objective 4 – Increased Access to Services
Actual CAPEX spend on expansion related projects (initiatives by the Minister)
as a percentage of budget
33. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI. The strategic objective was reported as not being
applicable for the target of actual CAPEX spent on expansion related projects (as initiatives by the Minister)
as percentage of budget while the planned strategic objective had an approved target of 90% in the
corporate plan.

Objective 9 – Capital Expenditure Programme
Overall project expenditure with Rand value target
34. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI.

35. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI.

Objective 11 – bulk Supply Agreements Concluded with
Municipalities/Other Customers
Municipalities/other customers with bulk agreements
36. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI.
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Overall project completion dates within targets
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Objective 18 – Board Effectiveness
Board member attendance of all board/committee meetings
37. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI.

Decision making: Percentage number resolutions taken by the board vs
number of resolutions required
38. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI.

Objective 21 – Good Governance
Breaches of materiality and significance framework
39. The source information or evidence and method of calculation for the achievement of the planned indicator
were not clearly defined, as required by the FMPPI.

Other Matters
40. I draw attention to the matters below.

Achievement of planned targets
41. Refer to the Annual Performance Report on pages 16 to 17 for information on the achievement of planned
targets for the year and explanations provided for the under achievement of a significant number of targets.
This information should be considered in the context of the material findings raised on the usefulness and

34

I

Report on the Audit of the Annual Performance Report

reliability of the reported performance information in paragraphs 31 to 39 of this report.

Adjustment of material misstatements
42. I identified material misstatements in the Annual Performance Report submitted for auditing which were
corrected. These material misstatements were on the reported performance information of financial
reporting compliance and improved key financial ratios.

Report on Audit of Compliance with Legislation
Introduction and scope
43. In accordance with the Public Audit Act (PAA) and the general notice issued in terms thereof I have
a responsibility to report material findings on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key
legislation. I performed procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
44. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the applicable subject matters are as follows:

Annual financial statements
45. The accounting authority did not submit the financial statements for auditing within two months after the
end of financial year, as required by Section 55(1)(c)(i) of the PFMA.
46. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed
financial reporting framework and supported by full and proper records as required by Section 55(1) (a) and
(b) of the Public Finance Management Act. Material misstatements of non-current assets, current assets,
liabilities, revenue, expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statements were subsequently corrected and/or the supporting records were provided subsequently, but
the supporting records that could not be provided resulted in the financial statements receiving a disclaimer
of opinion.

Procurement and contract management
47. Thresholds for local content on designated sectors procurement were not properly applied in accordance
with the requirements of preferential procurement regulation 9.
48. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the preference point system was applied
in all procurement of goods and services above R30 000 as required by Section 2(a) of the Preferential
Procurement Policy Framework Act and Treasury Regulations 16A6.3(b).

through a procurement process which is fair, equitable, transparent and competitive as required by
Section 51(1)(a)(iii) of the PFMA.

Expenditure management
50. Effective steps were not taken to prevent irregular expenditure amounting to R11 743 845, as disclosed in
note 23.1 to the financial statements, as required by Section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation
9.1.1.

Consequence management
51. Disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who made and/or permitted irregular expenditure, as
required by Section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 9.1.3, as the accounting authority did
not investigated all instances of irregular expenditure to determine if any official was liable.

Report on Audit of Compliance with Legislation

49. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that goods, works and services were procured
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Other Information
52. The Overberg Water Board’s accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report. The other information does not include
the financial statements, the auditor’s report thereon and those selected objectives presented in the Annual
Performance Report that have been specifically reported on in the auditor’s report.
53. My opinion on the financial statements and findings on the reported performance information and
compliance with legislation do not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
54. In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the selected
objectives presented in the Annual Performance Report, or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work I have performed on the other information
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, I am required to report that fact.

Internal Control Deficiencies
55. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported performance
information and compliance with applicable legislation. However, my objective was not to express any form
of assurance thereon. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies
that resulted in the basis for disclaimer of opinion, the findings on the performance report and the findings
on compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership
56. There was inadequate risk management and action plans to facilitate the role of leadership of the board.
The accounting authority was not unable to submit financial statements for audit within two months of
year-end as required by PFMA. The accounting authority was also not able to detect and prevent material
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misstatements through quarterly monitoring of the entity’s financial and performance information. As the
accounting authority did not review the monthly reports relating to the financial statements and performance
information, material misstatements within the financial statements and the Annual Performance Report
were identified during the audit which were not detected or corrected by the oversight processes within the
entity. This has caused material non-compliance and disclaimer matters reported in the audit report.
57. Instability within the leadership structures at the entity has also contributed to the lack of oversight at the
entity.
58. Inadequate policies and procedures were implemented to detect and prevent internal control deficiencies,
material misstatements in the financial statements and Annual Performance Report and non-compliance
with legislation. This caused a regression in the audit outcome.
59. A code of conduct has not been developed by the accounting authority which would facilitate to drive the
tone of ethical leadership within the entity.

Financial and performance management
60. Supporting documentation that should be available to substantiate and corroborate the financial statements
and performance information were inadequately retained due to poor record keeping. This resulted in
material limitations of scope.
61. There was a backlog in the capturing of daily transactions, which contributed to the late submission of the
financial statements and the material misstatements identified that were not detected by internal controls of
the entity.
62. There were also inadequate daily and monthly controls to detect and prevent errors that will result in material
misstatements in financial and performance report. Consequently, the entity was unable to maintain regular,
accurate and reliable information to achieve clean administration. Instability within the finance unit during
the year under review has also contributed to the regression in audit outcomes.

Governance
63. A lack of risk assessment and other risk management processes also contributed to various internal control
deficiencies which resulted in the regression of the audit outcome.
64. The entity did not ensure that there is an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit within the
entity. Consequently, the audit committee could not be effective in fulfilling their oversight role to ensure that
there was an adequate control environment within the entity.

Other Reports
65. I draw attention to the following engagements conducted by various parties that had, or could have, an
impact on the matters reported in the entity’s financial statements, reported performance information,
compliance with applicable legislation and other related matters. These reports did not form part of my
opinion on the financial statements or my findings on the reported performance information or compliance
with legislation.

66. The Minister of Water and Sanitation instituted a forensic investigation following allegations regarding
irregular claims by board members for hours worked without prior approval from the Minister, as well
as non-disclosure of financial interest for a donation that was approved by the board. The investigation,
which was conducted by a private firm, was concluded. The Minister of Water and Sanitation is presently
implementing recommendations made during the forensic investigation.

Cape Town
8 September 2017

Report on Audit of Compliance with Legislation

Investigations
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Annexure – Auditor-General’s Responsibility for
the Audit
1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and
the procedures performed on reported performance information for selected objectives and on entity’s
compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial Statements
2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in the auditor’s report,
I also:

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting authority.

• conclude on the appropriateness of accounting authority’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
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doubt on the Overberg Water Board ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information available to me
at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease
operating as a going concern.

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
2.

I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
I identify during my audit.

3.

I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
have a bearing on my independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

Boards’ Responsibilities and Approval of the Annual
Financial Statements
The board members are required in terms of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, (Act No .1 of
1999) to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the Annual
Financial Statements and related financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that
the Annual Financial Statements fairly present the state of affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Annual
Financial Statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.
The board members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To
enable the board to meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to
ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are
required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the entity’s business is conducted in a manner that,
in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying,
be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The board is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the Annual Financial Statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable,
and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The board has reviewed the entity’s cash flow forecast contained in the corporate plan for the year to 30 June
2017 and, in the light of this review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the entity has access
to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the entity’s Annual Financial
Statements. The Annual Financial Statements have been examined by the entity’s external auditors and their
report is presented on pages 28 to 31.
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 42 to 44, which have been prepared on the going concern
basis, were approved by the board on 7 September 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Phakamani Buthelezi
Interim Accounting Authority

Boards’ Responsibilities and Approval of the Annual Financial Statements

assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot
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Report of the Governing Board/Accounting Authority
The members of the Governing Board submit their report for the year ended
30 June 2016.

1.

Review of Activities

Main business and operations
The entity supplies bulk water to municipalities and agricultural customers
The operating results and state of affairs of the entity are fully set out in the attached Annual Financial Statements
and do not in our opinion require any further comment.
The net income for the year decreased as the entity did not have any tariff increases for the year under review
as well as the inclusion of a provision for the refurbishment of the rain water harvesting tanks.

2.

Compliance with Legislation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, approved
by National Treasury in terms of Section 79 of the Public Finance Management Act (Act No.1 of 1999), and the
following relevant statutes:

•
•
•

3.

Water Services Act (Act 108 of 1997)
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999)
Public Audit Act (Act 25 of 2004).

Corporate Governance

The Board supports the Code of Governance Principles as set out in King III.

4.

Share Capital
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The entity has no share capital and the Minister of Department of Water and Sanitation as the executive authority
(EA) is the sole shareholder.

5.

Going Concern and Sustainability

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 confirms a Total Comprehensive Income for the
year of R 4 428 183. The statement of Financial Position indicates a 10.45% increase in the total equity and liabilities.
In addition, the entity’s investments (reserves) have increased for the year ended and amount to R27 689 082 (see
note 4.1). The investments are set aside, including, but not limited to, any emergency and capital expenditure.
Over the last few financial years the entity has experienced several external factors on the tariff relating to
rising operational costs i.e chemicals, electricity, etc. The entity has responded introducing efficient operational
techniques to optimally and substantially utilize chemicals, electricity and to reduce the non-revenue water
within it’s network. One of the most pressing challenges currently facing the entity, is the pending drought
conditions. The strongest El Nino on record has put water production under strain. It is therefore on this basis
that the entity has made provisions in the corporate plan (5 year) and financial planning to lower anticipated
water production, sales and revenue.
Taking into account all of the abovementioned factors, the Governing Board is confident that the entity is
resilient and financially stable enough to withstand all external shocks (economic and climatic conditions) in the

long and short term. However, further engagements with its stakeholder wll be required to discuss the longterm strategy and funding requirements. It is therefore on this basis, when considering the principle of Going
Concern, the Governing Board resolved that it does not foresee any financial or solvency implications in the
short term that will impact the entity based on its financial position and reserves. This means the entity will not
be forced to halt operations and liquidate its assets in the near or foreseeable future.

6.

Events After the Reporting Period

The members of the Governing Board are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising after the end of the
financial year that has material impact on these Annual Financial Statements.

7.

Non-current Assets

There are no major changes in the nature of the non-current assets or the policy relating to the use of the noncurrent assets of the entity, during the year under review.

8.

Board Members

The members of the Governing Board during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:
Mr M. Ncwadi (Chairperson)
Mr N. H. Bastiaan (Deputy Chairperson)
Adv. D. J. Block
Ms N. Dhevcharran
Mrs K. E. Montgomery
Mr M. A. Smuts
Ms M. P. Zass

9.

Directors’ Interests

There were no director’s interests in contracts with stakeholders declared during the year.

10. Directors’ Emoluments
The directors’ emoluments is set out in note 14 to the financial statements in terms of Treasury Regulation 28.1,

11. Directors’ Service Contracts
The directors serve a four-year term.

12. Board Secretary
At present, the entity has not yet appointed a Board Secretary.

13. Committees of the Board
There were three committees of the board during the year under review:

•
•
•

The Audit and Risk Committee
The Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
The Finance and Procurement Committee

Report of the Governing Board/Accounting Authority

issued in terms of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999).
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Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended 30 June 2016
Notes

2016
R

2015
R

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

3

57 760 330

54 439 604

Investments

4

27 874 086

26 095 729

85 634 416

80 535 333

Current assets
Inventories

5

1 115 337

1 255 942

Trade and other receivables

6

6 904 005

7 465 468

Cash and cash equivalents

7

9 295 418

3 949 776

17 314 418

12 671 186

102 949 177

93 206 519

8

92 333 867

87 905 684

Trade and other payables

9

8 717 245

5 250 835

Provisions

10

1 898 066

50 000

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Funds and reserves
Liabilities
Current liabilities
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TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

10 615 310

5 300 835

102 949 177

93 206 519
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2016
Notes

2016
R

2015
R

Revenue

11

42 267 338

41 932 989

Costs of potable water

12

(26 690 206)

(25 426 719)

Gross income

15 577 132

16 506 269

Operating expenditure

(8 501 552)

(7 438 004)

Employee costs

(5 390 110)

(5 993 081)

(Impairment)/Reversal of impairment of financial assets

(323 899)

150 137

Depreciation and amortisation

(135 486)

(147 874)

–

(334 211)

1 226 085

2 743 237

897 089

1 088 306

2 321 123

1 872 760

4 444 297

5 704 303

(16 114)

24 099

4 428 183

5 728 402

Profit/(loss) on disposal and/or scrapping of fixed assets
Operating income / (loss)

13

Other income
Net interest income

15

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income

16

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

Emergency
fund

Capital
expenditure
fund

Accumulated
surplus
R

Total
equity
R

Balance at 1 July 2013

–

–

79 993 011

79 993 011

Total comprehensive income for the year

–

–

2 184 270

2 184 270

Prior year error

–

–

911 121

911 121

As previously stated

–

–

1 273 149

1 273 149

82 177 281

82 177 281

Balance at 1 July 2014
Total comprehensive income for the year

–

–

5 728 402

5 728 402

Prior year error

–

–

1 790 497

1 790 497

As previously stated

–

–

3 937 905

3 937 905

Transfers in funds for the year

5 000 000

20 000 000

(25 000 000)

–

Balance at 1 July 2015

5 000 000

20 000 000

62 905 684

87 905 984

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 30 June 2016

–

–

4 428 183

4 428 183

5 000 000

20 000 000

67 333 867

92 333 867

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

Statement of Changes in Equity
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Statement of Cash Flows
Notes

2016
R

2015
R

Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

41 705 875

39 535 877

(32 800 285)

(33 065 093)

Cash generated from operations

18

8 905 589

6 470 784

Net interest income

15

583 288

495 061

9 488 877

6 965 845

(5 881 069)

(2 574 659)

Net cash from operating activities
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investments made during the year

4

–

(25 888 228)

Interest paid

15

(62 774)

–

Interest received on investments

15

1 800 609

1 377 699

Net cash from investing activities

(4 143 234)

(27 085 188)

Total cash movement for the year

5 345 643

(20 119 343)

Cash at the beginning of the year

3 949 776

24 069 119

9 295 419

3 949 776
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Total cash at end of the year
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Accounting Policies
1.

Basis of Preparation of the Annual Financial Statements

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), and the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, (Act No.1 of 1999) (PFMA).
In terms of the Public Finance Management Act, the financial statements are to be prepared in accordance with
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP). The Accounting General of the National Treasury of the Republic
of South Africa has given approval as per Section 79 of the PFMA that the financial statements of Overberg Water
may be compiled using the IFRS.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, and incorporate the principal
accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands. These accounting policies are
consistent with the previous year.

1.1

Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:

•
•

it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or
construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or
service it. If a replacement cost is recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their
impairment losses. Land is stated at cost.
The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Item

Average useful life

Water purification schemes

•

Buildings

50 – 70 years

•
•
•
•

Structures
Pipes/network
Mechanical equipment
Electronic and electrical equipment

50 – 70 years
45 – 60 years
15 – 25 years
10 – 25 years

Spares

Indefinite

Movable equipment and furniture
• Movable equipment
• Furniture

5 – 10 years
15 – 10 years

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2016 confirms a Total
Comprehensive Income for the year of R4 476 821. The Statement of Financial Position indicates
a 10.45% increase in the total equity and liabilities. In addition, the entity’s investments (reserves)
have increased for the year and amount to R27 689 082 (see note 4.1). The investments are set
aside, including, but not limited to, any emergency and capital expenditure.
Motor vehicles
Offices
Land

3 – 5 years

250 000 km – 300 000 km
50 – 70 years
Indefinite
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estimated residual value. Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
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The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in the
statement of Comprehensive Income when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if
any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost and not depreciated. Depreciation on capital work-in-progress commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

1.2

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of selling
expenses. The net realisable value of raw materials and supplies held to be used in the production of inventories will
not be written down if the finished goods are expected to be sold or exchanged at or above cost
The cost of inventories is assigned using the weighted average cost formula. The same cost formula is used for all
inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity.
Emergency spares are held to repair leaks and other incidences in order to ensure an uninterrupted water supply
to consumers.

1.3

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held with banks available for working capital and
excludes funds allocated for emergency procedures and funds allocated for infrastructure upgrades.

1.4

Impairment of assets

The entity assesses, at each end of the reporting period, whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset.
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use.
Impairment losses are recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
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Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. Impairment losses are reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. Impairment losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised.
The entity assesses its trade and other receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the entity estimates whether anticipated future cash
flows will offset the amounts outstanding.

1.5

Financial instruments

Classification
The company classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories:

•
•

Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained/incurred and takes place
at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis.

ANN UAL FINA N C IA L STAT EM EN T S

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the arrangement.
The company classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. For financial instruments which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the instrument.

Subsequent measurement
Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value being included in profit or loss for the period.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Fair value determination
The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis, and option pricing models, making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.

Investments
The long-term, interest-bearing financial instruments held by the entity are stated at amortised cost. Interest on
investments is calculated using the effective interest method and recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables
impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are measured at fair value.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method.

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

1.6

Amounts received in advance

Capital contributions received relating to items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded as amounts
received in advance. The contributions are subsequently recognised as an asset when the related asset is brought
into use.

1.7

Provisions and accruals

Provisions and accruals are liabilities where uncertainty exists about the timing or amount of the future expenditure
required to settle the liability. The entity recognises, in payables, an amount for accruals where an estimate is made
of the amount due for goods or services that have been received of supplied, but the invoice is outstanding or a
formal agreement with the supply has not been concluded. Provisions are liabilities, excluding accruals that are
recognised where the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable
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Trade and other receivables originated by the entity are stated at amortised cost less an allowance for
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estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provision is measured at the best estimate of the amount
to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, discounting to present value where the time value of money is
expected to be material.

1.8

Revenue

Revenue comprises amounts invoiced to customers for potable water, exclusive of value-added tax, at the
declared tariffs.
Revenue from the sale of water is recognised when all the following conditions have been met:

•
•
•
•

The tariff has been set
The water allocation has been agreed
The water consumption has been measured
The costs incurred, or to be incurred, in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts
receivable for water supplied in the normal course of business.

1.9

Costs of potable water

The related cost of purifying and providing water, that is recognised as revenue in the current period, is included in
costs of potable water.

1.10 Employee benefits
Leave benefits due to employees are recognised as a liability in the financial statements.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the Income Statement
as incurred.
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as
paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in
the period in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation
to make such payments as a result of past performance.
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1.11 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership.

Operating leases – lessor
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and are recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
Income for leases is disclosed under other income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating
lease asset. This liability is not discounted.
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1.12 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and material losses through
criminal conduct
Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure and material losses through criminal conduct is recognised as expenditure
in the Statement of Financial Performance according to the nature of the payment and disclosed separately in
note 23. If the expenditure is recoverable, it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or
written off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.13 Related parties
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party, exercise significant influence
over the other party or jointly control the other party. Specific information with regard to related party transaction is
included in note 20.

1.14 Judgements and estimates
The entity makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities during the next financial year are
discussed below:

Initial measurement of financial assets
Short-financial assets have been measured at the transaction price unless there was an indication that the transaction
was provided at terms that were longer than the normal credit terms of 30 days. Where extended payment terms
were given, the transaction prices are discounted at the rate applicable to debt owed to the entity to determine the
fair value for initial measurement purposes.

Impairment of financial assets
economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio.

Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the company is the current bid price.

Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional
disclosure of these estimates of provisions are included in note 10 – Provisions.

Residual values and useful lives of plant and equipment
Residual values and useful lives of plant and equipment are assessed on an annual basis. Estimates and judgements
in this regard are based on historical experience and expectations of the manner in which assets are to be used,
together with the expected proceeds likely to be realised when assets are disposed of at the end of their useful lives.
Such expectations could change over time and therefore impact both depreciation charges and carrying values of
plant and equipment in the future. Residual value assessments consider issues such as future market conditions,
the remaining life of the assets and projected disposal values.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
Management applies its judgement to the fact patterns and advice it receives from its attorneys, advocates and
other advisors in assessing if an obligation is probable, more likely than not, or remote. This judgement application is
used to determine if the obligation is recognised as a liability or disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent assets
and liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in notes 24 and 25.

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

The impairment for trade receivables, is based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific

I
49

ANN UA L FI N A N CI A L STAT EM EN T S

2.

New Standards and Interpretations

Standards and interpretations not yet effective
At the date of approval of the Annual Financial Statements, the following new standards, interpretations and
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amendments that apply to the entity were in issue but not yet effective:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 5 – (Amendments) – ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 7 – (Improvements) – ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 9 – (Finalised Version) – ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 10 – (Amendments) – ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 11 – (Amendments) – ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 12 – (Amendments) – ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 14 – ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 15 – ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 16 – ‘Leases’ (effective 1 January 2019)
IAS 1 – (Amendments) – ‘Presentation of Financial Instruments’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 16 – (Amendments) – ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 19 – (Amendments) – ‘Employee Benefits’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 27 – (Amendments) – ‘Separate Financial Statements’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 28 – (Amendments) – ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 34 – (Amendments) – ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 38 – (Amendments) – ‘Intangible Assets’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 41 – (Amendments) – ‘Agriculture’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 7 – (Improvements) – ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 9 – (Finalised Version) – ‘Financial Instruments’ (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 10 – (Amendments) – ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 11 – (Amendments) – ‘Joint Arrangements’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 12 – (Amendments) – ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 14 – ‘Regulatory Deferral Accounts’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IFRS 15 – ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 16 – ‘Leases’ (effective 1 January 2019)
IAS 1 – (Amendments) – ‘Presentation of Financial Instruments’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 16 – (Amendments) – ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 19 – (Amendments) – ‘Employee Benefits’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 27 – (Amendments) – ‘Separate Financial Statements’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 28 – (Amendments) – ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 34 – (Amendments) – ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 38 – (Amendments) – ‘Intangible Assets’ (effective 1 January 2016)
IAS 41 – (Amendments) – ‘Agriculture’ (effective 1 January 2016).

Management’s assessment of the new standards, interpretations and amendments has not revealed any material
impact on the entity’s results. The entity does not plan to adopt any of the above-mentioned standards, interpretations
and amendments early.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
The entity has chosen not to adopt the following standards and interpretations early. These have been published and
are mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2014 or later periods:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
This new standard is the first phase of a three-phase project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. To date, the standard includes chapters for classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and liabilities. The following are the main changes from IAS 39:

•
•

Financial assets will be categorised as those subsequently measured at fair value or at amortised cost.
Financial assets at amortised cost are those financial assets where the business model for managing the assets
is to hold the assets to collect contractual cash flows (where the contractual cash flows represent payments of
principal and interest only). All other financial assets are to be subsequently measured at fair value.

•
•

Under certain circumstances, financial assets may be designated as at fair value.
For hybrid contracts, where the host contract is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9, then the whole instrument
is classified in accordance with IFRS 9, without separation of the embedded derivative. In other circumstances,
the provisions of IAS 39 still apply.

•

Voluntary reclassification of financial assets is prohibited. Financial assets shall be reclassified if the entity changes
its business model for the management of financial assets. In such circumstances, reclassification takes place
prospectively from the beginning of the first reporting period after the date of change of the business model.
Financial liabilities shall not be reclassified.
Investments in equity instruments may be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. When
such an election is made, it may not subsequently be revoked, and gains or losses accumulated in equity are not
recycled to profit or loss on derecognition of the investment. The election may be made per individual investment.

•
•

IFRS 9 does not allow for investments in equity instruments to be measured at cost.
The classification categories for financial liabilities remains unchanged. However, where a financial liability
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the change in fair value attributable to changes in the
liabilities credit risk shall be presented in other comprehensive income. This excludes situations where such
presentation will create or enlarge an accounting mismatch, in which case, the full fair value adjustment shall
be recognised in profit or loss.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.
The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2019 Annual Financial Statements.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity’s Annual Financial Statements.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IAS 32)
Clarification of certain aspects concerning the requirements for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2014.
The entity expects to adopt the amendment for the first time in the 2015 annual financial statements.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity’s annual financial statements.
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IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
New guidance on fair value measurement and disclosure requirements.
Annual Improvements 2010–2012 Cycle: Amendments to clarify the measurement requirements for those shortterm receivables and payables. The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2014.
Annual Improvements 2011–2013 Cycle: Amendments to clarify that the portfolio exception applies to all contracts
within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9. The effective date of the amendment
is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2014.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity’s Annual Financial Statements.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts from Customers
A new standard requires entities to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. This core principle is achieved through a five-step methodology that is required to be
applied to all contracts with customers.
The new standard will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that
were not previously addressed comprehensively and improve guidance for multiple-element arrangements. The new
standard supersedes the following:
a)

IAS 11 Construction Contracts

b)

IAS 18 Revenue

c)

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

d)

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

e)

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

f)

SIC-31 Revenue—Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2017.
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It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity’s Annual Financial Statements.

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle: Amendments to the definitions and disclosure requirements for key
management personnel.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 July 2014.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity’s Annual Financial Statements.
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3.

Property Plant and Equipment
2016
Accumulated
depreciation

Cost/Valuation
Water purification schemes

Carrying
value

75 627 206

(27 314 034)

48 313 172

Motor vehicles

3 391 049

(1 367 129)

2 023 920

Movable equipment and furniture

2 560 445

(1 573 721)

986 724

73 466

(276 683)

(203 217)

5 994 893

–

5 994 893

644 840

–

644 840

–

–

–

88 291 898

(30 531 568)

57 760 330

Offices
Capital work-in-progress
Land
Spares (water purification schemes)
TOTAL

2015
Accumulated
depreciation

Cost/Valuation
Water purification schemes

Carrying
value

(26 213 052)

48 885 530

Motor vehicles

4 170 842

(2 177 313)

1 993 528

Movable equipment and furniture

2 157 071

(1 175 943)

981 128

Offices

1 160 895

(355 510)

805 385

Capital work-in-progress

954 847

–

954 847

Land

644 840

–

644 840

Spares (water purification schemes)

174 345

–

174 345

84 361 422

(29 921 819)

54 439 604

TOTAL

Reconciliation of property plant and equipment – 2016
Property plant and
equipment

Opening
balance

Water purification schemes

48 885 530

Disposals/
scrapped

Transfers

Depreciation

528 623

–

–

(1 919 762)

47 494 391

1 993 529

243 624

–

(73 231)

(140 002)

2 023 920

Movable equipment and furniture

981 128

68 776

(6 419)

252 204

(308 965)

986 724

Offices

805 385

–

–

(178 973)

(10 849)

615 563

Capital work-in-progress

954 847

5 040 046

–

–

–

5 994 893

Land

644 840

–

–

–

–

644 840

Spares (water purification schemes)

174 344

–

–

(174 344)

–

–

54 439 604

5 881 069

(6 419)

(174 344)

(2 379 578)

57 760 331

Motor vehicles

TOTAL

Additions

Total
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Reconciliation of property plant and equipment – 2015
Property plant and

Opening

equipment

balance

Water purification schemes

50 650 371

1 030 070

Motor vehicles

1 853 336

Movable equipment and furniture

Disposals

Transfers

Depreciation

(191 428)

(104 140)

(2 499 343)

48 885 530

474 880

–

–

(334 687)

1 993 529

1 214 423

114 860

(97 996)

–

(250 159)

981 128

841 349

–

–

–

(35 964)

805 385

–

954 847

–

–

–

954 847

Land

644 840

–

–

–

–

644 840

Spares (water purification
schemes)

813 930

–

(44 786)

(594 799)

–

174 344

56 018 249

2 574 657

(334 210)

(698 939)

(3 120 153)

54 439 604

Offices
Capital work-in-progress

TOTAL

Additions

/scrapped

Total

Property, plant and equipment include assets with a total cost of R191 072, which are fully depreciated but still in use.

Change in estimate
The useful life and residual value of certain assets were revised by management during the year. These changes
were applied prospectively and resulted in a decrease in depreciation of R207 215 for the current year and a
decrease in future period depreciation of R2 658 910.

3.1	Infrastructure valuation
The last external valuation of Overberg Water Board’s water infrastructure was on 30 June 2015. The valuation was
performed by independent engineers of Aurecon Proprietary Limited. Aurecon Proprietary Limited is not connected
to the entity and has experience in the location and category of the water infrastructure valued.
The asset base was valued using the current replacement value approach. The water infrastructure’s replacement value
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on 30 June 2015 was R 1 357 549 535. No revaluation adjustments are made in the Annual Financial Statements as
the accounting policy of the entity is to value property, plant and equipment at cost price less accumulated depreciation.

3.2

Capital work-in-progress

The capital work-in-progress expenditure of R5 689 378 incorporated costs relating to the refurbishment,
upgrading, augmentation and rehabilitation of infrastructure, which has resulted in an increase in property, plant and
equipment. With construction work underway, Overberg Water intends completing the refurbishment and upgrading
of infrastructure in the new financial year.
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3.3

Details of properties

Overberg Water’s area of service is in and around Heidelberg, Swellendam and Caledon in the Western Cape.

Nature of asset

Location

Size

Property number: 591

Workshop

Caledon

0.2346 ha

Property number: 1358

Residential house

Caledon

0.0660 ha

Property number: 1359

Residential house

Caledon

0.0660 ha

Property number: 383

Office

Caledon

0.0501 ha

Property number: 1458

Reservoir R2

Heidelberg

1.2007 ha

Property number: 1494

Residential house

Heidelberg

0.0804 ha

Property number: 1925

Reservoir R8

Heidelberg

0.6248 ha

Property number: 150

Office

Heidelberg

0.0914 ha

Portion 32 & 33 of farm no. 7

Reservoir R3

Bredasdorp

0.2436 ha

Portion 13 of farm no. 9

Reservoir R5

Bredasdorp

0.4026 ha

Portion 5 & 6 of farm 87

Reservoir BRC9

Bredasdorp

0.1715 ha

Portion 3 of farm no. 95

Reservoir R4

Bredasdorp

0.4248 ha

Portion 1 of farm no. 157

Reservoir R6

Bredasdorp

0.3806 ha

Portion 1 of farm no. 254

Reservoir R4

Riversdale

0.4704 ha

Portion 31 of farm no. 80

Tailing dams

Swellendam

1.7046 ha

Portion 36 of farm no. 80

Treatment plant

Swellendam

5.0663 ha

Portion 24 of farm no. 88

Reservoir R1

Swellendam

0.4193 ha

Portion 8 & 9 of farm no. 243

Treatment plant

Swellendam

3.8581 ha

Portion 13 of farm no. 289

Reservoir R7

Swellendam

0.4729 ha

Portion 5 of farm no. 308

Reservoir R3

Swellendam

0.4831 ha

Portion 6 of farm no. 312

Reservoir R5

Swellendam

0.4802 ha

Portion 5 of farm no. 329

Reservoir R6

Swellendam

0.7053 ha

Portion 2 of farm no. 355

Reservoir BRE3

Swellendam

0.3551 ha

Portion 7 of farm no. 363

Reservoir R2

Swellendam

0.4796 ha

Portion 1 of farm no. 365

Reservoir R1

Swellendam

0.7441 ha

Portion 4 of farm no. 427

Reservoir BRW4

Swellendam

0.3248 ha

Portion 26 of farm no. 455

Reservoir R7

Swellendam

0.2507 ha

Portion 4 of farm 498

Reservoir R8

Swellendam

0.2610 ha

Servitudes and area in and around Caledon.

4.	Investments
4.1	Investec Corporate Cash Manager:
2016
R
CCM Call Money Fund
CCM Call Account

2015
R

25 151 740

25 888 228

2 537 343

–

27 689 082

25 888 228

The Investec Call Account investment represents the emergency and capital expenditure funds (refer to note 8).
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4.2

Listed shares
2016
R

Sanlam investment shares

2015
R

185 003

207 501

Opening fair value of shares

207 501

189 264

Movement in market fair value during the year

(22 497)

18 237

Overberg Water acquired free shares from Sanlam with demutualisation in 1998. The share value then was R5.40 per share. 795 and
2 611 shares were issued but 10% was repurchased in 2005 at R12 per share. The repurchases amounts of R960 and R3 132 are
included in the amounts of unclaimed dividends. The total value of the shares as at 30 June 2016 (at R60.36 per share) was
approximately R43 157 and R141 846 respectively. The shares have unclaimed dividends of R12 425 and R40 812 respectively.

4.3

Non-current assets
2016
R

At amortised cost
At market fair value
TOTAL INVESTMENTS

27 689 082

2015
R
25 888 228

185 003

207 501

27 874 086

26 095 729

5.	Inventories
2016
R

2015
R

Maintenance and emergency spares

852 753

1 048 882

Potable water

138 918

129 593

Chemicals

113 169

77 209

10 495

258

1 115 336

1 255 942

Diesel
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The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period amounts to R1 675 172 (2015: R738 874).

6.

Trade and Other Receivables
2016
R

2015
R

7 880 442

6 655 973

Impairment allowance

(1 336 922)

(1 013 023)

Net trade receivables

6 543 520

5 642 950

Department of Water and Sanitation (Projects)

67 285

1 543 124

Prepaid expenses

25 194

–

Other receivables

268 006

279 395

6 904 005

7 465 468

Trade receivables

Refer to note 21.3 for further disclosure on trade receivables and impairment allowances.
Also refer to note 24 for items that have been reclassified in the current year.

ANN UAL FINA N C IA L STAT EM EN T S

7.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
2016
R

2015
R

9 293 241

3 946 804

2 178

2 973

9 295 419

3 949 776

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Bank accounts
Cash on hand

Overdraft facilities
The entity has the following banking facilities:
– Guarantee (LDP) facility of R 102 000.

Guarantee provided by ABSA Bank Ltd
Letter of guarantee number 36551301542 for the sum of R101 500 given by ABSA Bank Ltd in favour of Eskom Holdings Soc.
Limited Reg. No. 2002/015527/06 (reference number SDRF012/13) for electricity supply at the Duivenhoks Water Scheme.

8.

Funds and Reserves
2016
R

Capital expenditure fund
Emergency fund
Accumulated surplus

20 000 000

20 000 000

5 000 000

5 000 000

67 333 867

62 905 684

92 333 867

87 905 684

Trade and Other Payables
2016
R

2015
R

Trade payables

4 297 743

3 485 906

Accruals

1 897 755

–

671 830

43 639

1 524 972

1 242 461

324 946

478 830

8 717 245

5 250 836

2016
R

2015
R

Amounts received in advance
Salary payables
SARS

10. Provisions
Opening balance

50 000

–

Provisions for the year

1 848 066

50 000

CLOSING BALANCE

1 898 066

50 000
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R
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Reconciliation of provisions – 2016
Provision for legal fees

Opening
balance

Total

–

(50 000)

–

–

1 898 066

–

1 898 066

50 000

1 898 066

(50 000)

1 898 066

harvesting tanks

Provision for legal fees

Utilised
during the
year

50 000

Provision for the refurbishment of rain water

Reconciliation of provisions – 2015

Increases

Opening
balance

Increases
–

Utilised
during the
year

50 000

Total
–

50 000

The refurbishment of the Masibambane rain water harvesting tanks on behalf of the Department of Water and Sanitation is set
out in note 24.

11. Revenue
2016
R

2015
R

Bulk water

14 287 222

12 745 020

Industrial and agricultural water

27 980 116

29 187 969

42 267 338

41 932 989
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12. Costs of Potable Water
2016
R

2015
R

Chemicals

2 555 779

2 345 892

Energy

6 835 105

6 224 546

Fuel

568 637

640 375

Insurance

235 632

376 160

Laboratory costs

252 790

187 406

10 588 323

9 532 156

127 176

84 179

(9 325)

11 475

Protective clothing

104 827

11 105

Raw water

741 110

787 547

Repairs and maintenance

1 423 783

1 139 142

Ultra filtration plant

1 022 277

1 114 457

Depreciation (note 13)

2 244 092

2 972 279

26 690 206

25 426 719

Labour
Machinery and tool hire
Movement in potable water inventory

Refer to note 21.3 for further disclosure on trade receivables and impairment allowances.
Also refer to note 24 for items that have been reclassified in the current year.
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13. Operating Income
2016
R

2015
R

Operating income/(loss) for the year is stated after accounting for the following:
Auditors remuneration

327 425

430 875

– Audit fees

327 425

418 375

–

12 500

Consulting and professional fees

– Other engagements

2 210 392

1 581 598

Depreciation on property plant and equipment (note 3)

2 379 578

3 120 154

135 486

147 874

2 244 092

2 972 279

Depreciation cost related to operating expenditure
Depreciation cost related to potable water
Directors’ emoluments (note 14)

1 683 208
15 846 054

Employee costs related to administration

2 476 550

3 254 976

Employee costs related to potable water

10 588 323

9 532 156

2 913 560

3 058 922

323 899

(150 137)

–

334 210

Operating lease charges

918 829

613 346

– Premises

371 524

182 400

– Equipment

547 305

430 946

59
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61

62

Executives and senior management (note 14)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) on trade and other receivables (note 6)
(Profit)/loss on scrapping of property plant and equipment (note 3)

Number of employees
– Permanent
– Fixed-term contracts

14. Compensation to Directors, Executives and Senior Management
Accounting authority
(Non-executive
directors)
M. Ncwadi

Fee
(stipend)

Additional
fees

SDL

Reimbursements

Total
2016

Total 2015

103 377

141 519

2 533

18 304

265 733

479 049

N. H. Bastiaan

79 555

25 336

1 049

896

106 836

190 227

D. J. Block

66 344

41 244

1 076

12 832

121 496

247 903

N. Dhevcharran

66 841

55 298

1 221

2 867

126 227

140 371

K. E. Montgomery

36 472

62 091

986

5 096

104 645

298 647

M. A. Smuts

66 344

47 453

1 138

8 852

123 787

148 268

M. P. Zass

66 344

34 147

1 005

7 238

108 734

178 742

485 277

407 088

9 008

56 085

957 458

1 683 208
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Executives and
senior management

Salaries

Contributions to
Performance
retirement
bonuses
medical and life
cover benefits

Total
2016

Allowances

Total 2015

–

–

–

–

–

1 122 002

C. Stewart (COO)

686 686

–

152 763

194 417

1 033 865

935 942

A. Cilliers (CFO)

578 880

–

112 269

195 087

886 236

176 435

593 465

–

141 167

132 209

866 841

824 543

88 940

–

22 876

14 802

126 618

–

1 947 970

–

429 075

536 515

2 913 560

3 058 922

R. A. Edson (CEO)1

S. J. Armoed (Senior Manager)
T. Rani (Senior Manager)

2

1

R. A. Edson terminated on 30 April 2015.

2

T. Rani appointed on 3 May 2016.
O. N. V. Fundakubi is the Acting Chief Executive Officer on secondment from the Department of Water and Sanitation and is paid
by the Department of Water and Sanitation.

3

15. Net Interest Income
2016
R
Interest on investments

1 800 609

1 377 699

Bank accounts

208 580

122 743

Trade and other receivables

374 708

322 086

–

57 674

2 383 897

1 880 201

56 609

5 253

Other

4 677

–

SARS

1 488

2 188

62 774

7 441

2 321 123

1 872 760

Project interest
Interest income
Trade and other payables

Interest paid

I
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2015
R

16. Other Comprehensive Income
2016
R
Dividends received
Profit/(loss) on share adjustment

17. Taxation
As as state owned entity, Overberg Water is not liable for any taxes except for value added taxes.

2015
R
6 383

5 862

(22 497)

18 237

(16 114)

24 099
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18. Cash Generated from Operations
2016
R
Net (loss)/income before interest

2015
R

2 107 060

3 465 692

2 379 578

3 120 153

180 763

334 210

–

(150 137)

Adjustments for non cash items
Depreciation
Transfers/(write offs) of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of trade receivables
Provisions
Movement in investments
Fair value adjustments on investments

1 848 066

50 000

(1 778 357)

–

(22 497)

–

Dividend received

–

5 862

22 497

23 641

Inventories

140 605

(363 433)

Trade and other receivables

561 463

(1 695 850)

3 466 410

1 680 647

8 905 589

6 470 784

Bad debts written off
Changes in working capital

Trade and other payables

19. Commitments
19.1 Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

– within one year

2015
R

636 779

620 969

Premises

158 384

162 000

Equipment

478 395

458 969

595 138

503 185

– in second to fifth year inclusive
Premises
Equipment
MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS DUE: EQUIPMENT & PREMISES

–

–

595 138

503 185

1 231 917

1 124 154

Printers are leased by the entity under an operating lease and amounts to commitments of R1 073 533 (2015: R962 154).
The terms of the various leases are five years.
Offices situated in Somerset West are leased by the entity under operating leases and amounts to commitments of R158 384
(2015: R 162 000). The leases end on 31 October 2016.

19.2 Operating leases – as lessor (income)
The entity receives rental income for servitudes. Servitude agreements are non-cancellable and have terms from four to six years.
There are no contingent rents receivable.
2016
R

2015
R

183 260

139 563

– in second to fifth year inclusive

296 896

293 674

MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS DUE

480 156

433 237

I
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19.3 Capital commitments
2016
R
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment that is
contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements.

2015
R

6 759 433

2 141 087

The amounts disclosed above for capital commitments exclude VAT.

20. Related Parties
Overberg Water is a schedule 3B enterprise in terms of the Public Finance Management Act. It is 100% controlled by the
Government of the Republic of South Africa, and is represented by the Department of Water and Sanitation.
The related parties of Overberg Water consist mainly of government departments, state-owned enterprises and other public entities
in the national sphere of government.

20.1.	Transactions with the Executive Authority (Department of Water and
Sanitation)
Overberg Water purchases raw water from the Department of Water and Sanitation (DWS) and acts as implementation agent on
behalf of DWS for specific projects.
2016
R

2015
R

– As implementation agents
Masibambane Project
• Transactions for the year

2 056

(1 248)

57 152

57 152

• Bank accounts managed

1 605

870 865

• Balances: Trade payables

(814 811)

–

• Balances: Other receivables

War on Leaks Project
• Transactions for the year
• Balances: Other receivables
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• Bank accounts managed

(826)

(96 202)

10 133

30 504

217 095

440 281

Ministerial launch function – Raising of Clanwilliam Dam
• Transactions for the year (commission)

(145 5477)

–

–

1 455 468

• Transactions for the year

741 110

787 547

• Balances: Trade payables

(1 191 714)

(860 226)

• Balances: Other receivables
– Purchases of raw water

– Secondment of Acting Chief Executive Officer
• Transactions for the year - refer to note 14

20.2 Transactions with the Accounting Authority (Board of Directors)
All the transactions with board members are set out in note 14.
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20.3 Transactions with other organs of state
2016
R

2015
R

– CSIR
Laboratory costs
• Transactions for the year

–

41 013

–

(18 084)

13 411

30 516

• Transactions for the year

6 674 073

6 029 101

• Balances: Trade payables

(221 111)

(619 900)

(2 000)

(2 342)

580

452

(129 106)

(342 363)

–

98 000

697

697

19 120

19 013

• Transactions for the year

3 395 650

3 121 025

• Balances: Other payables

(19 351)

(197 795)

• Transactions for the year

3 431 808

3 021 816

• Balances: Other payables

(305 595)

(314 334)

(45 612)

(44 141)

• Transactions for the year

301 940

392 522

• Balances: Trade payables

(21 098)

(27 414)

–

(46 146)

52 607

52 607

– Department of Transport and Public Works
Other income – Rent from servitude
• Transactions for the year
• Balances: Trade receivables
– Eskom
Energy

Water sales
• Transactions for the year
• Balances: Trade receivables
– EWSETA
Other income
• Transactions for the year
• Balances: Trade receivables
– SABC
• Transactions for the year
– SA Post Office
Postage
• Transactions for the year
– SARS
VAT

PAYE, UIF and SDL

– Telkom
Other income – Rent from servitude
• Transactions for the year
Telephone costs

– Transnet
Other income – Rent from servitude
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20.4 Total transactions and balances with related parties
2016
R

2015
R

Total transactions – (Income)/Expense

13 646 570

12 172 111

Total balances – Receivable/(Payable)

(500 557)

(294 970)

21. Financial Assets and Liabilities
2016
R

2015
R

Financial assets
Investments

27 689 082

25 888 228

6 904 005

7 465 468

34 593 087

33 353 696

Investments listed shares

185 003

207 501

Financial assets at fair market value

185 003

207 501

9 295 419

3 949 776

7 720 470

4 728 367

Trade and other receivables (note 6)
Financial assets at amortised cost

Cash and cash equivalents
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables – Financial liabilities at amortised cost

22. Risk Management
The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: capital risk liquidity risk and credit risk.

22.1 Capital risk management
The entity’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to remain
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sustainable and to provide service delivery.
The capital structure of the entity consists of trade and other payables (note 9) and cash and cash equivalents (note 7) and funds as
disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position.
There were no borrowings for the 2015 and 2016 financial years.

22.2 Liquidity risk
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future expenses and commitments. The entity manages liquidity
risk through an ongoing review of the entity’s available and projected cash flow.
The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
Statement of Financial Position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal its carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.
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Between 1 and
5 years

At 30 June 2016
Trade and other payables
Commitments

–

8 717 245

8 717 245

636 779

1 231 917

595 138

9 354 024

9 949 162

Trade and other payables
Commitments

Total

595 138

Between 1 and
5 years

At 30 June 2015

Less than
1 year

Less than
1 year

Total

–

5 250 836

5 250 836

503 185

620 969

1 124 154

503 185

5 871 805

6 374 990

22.3 Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The entity only deposits cash with major banks with
high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter party.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
2016
R

2015
R

Financial assets
Investec Private Bank (division of Investec Bank Ltd)

27 689 082

25 888 228

ABSA Bank Ltd

9 293 241

3 946 804

Trade and other receivables

6 904 005

7 052 763

185 003

207 501

2 178

2 973

Sanlam listed shares
Cash on hand

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are evaluated by management on an
ongoing basis. Management assesses the credit quality of the customers taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors.
Trade receivables which are less than three months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June 2016 R 1 542 063
(2015: R 1 674 974) was past due but not impaired.
2016
Gross
Current

2 015
Impairment

Gross

Impairment

4 981 735

4 034 593

–

One month past due

408 456

805 480

–

Two months past due

255 143

391 048

–

Three months past due and older

Debtors turnover days

2 215 385

(1 336 922)

1 491 469

(1 013 023)

7 860 719

(1 336 922)

6 722 590

(1 013 023)
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2016
R

2015
R

1 013 023

1 163 160

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance
Provision for impairment

323 899

(150 137)

1 336 922

1 013 023

I
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23. Fruitless & Wasteful Irregular Expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure incurred in contravention of, or that is not in accordance
with, a requirement of any applicable legislation, including (a–c) below. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is an expenditure which
was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised.
a) the PFMA;
b)

the State Tender Board Act 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968) or any regulations made in terms of that Act; or

c)

any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

For the year under review the entity recorded R 11 743 845 (2015: R 395 724) of expenditure as irregular expenditure. The entity
has instituted disciplinary measures and opened criminal and civil cases against the relevant parties (where relevant).
The current expenditure is included in the following line items:

2016
R

2015
R

Costs of potable water

5 314 404

117 624

General and administrative expenses

3 176 805

278 100

Property, plant and equipment

3 214 616

Directors, emoluments – overpayment

38 020

–

11 743 845

395 724

23.1	Irregular expenditure
2016
R

2015
R

7 227 837

6 832 113

11 743 845

395 724

Less: Amounts condoned

–

–

Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned)

–

–

Less: Amounts not recoverable (not condoned)

–

–

18 971 682

7 227 837

Reconciliation
Opening balance
Add: Irregular expenditure – current year
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Closing balance
Classification of irregular expenditure
Deviations

200 000

Local content

367 080

Two quotes only

824 686

Goods, works or service were not procured through a procurement process which is
fair, equitable, transparent and competitive
Expenditure where the points system in respect of the PPPFA was not used.
Non-compliance to Treasury regulations

16 502 829

6 641 881

1 039 067

585 956

38 020

–

18 971 682

7 227 837
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23.2 Fruitless & wasteful expenditure
2016

2015

R

R

Reconciliation
Opening balance

7 441

Add: Fruitless and wasteful – current year

62 774

7 441

Closing balance

70 215

7 441

61 862

5 253

6 865

2 188

Classification of irregular expenditure
Interest paid on overdue creditors’ accounts
Interest paid to SARS
Other

1 488
70 215

7 441

24. Contingent Liabilities
Overberg Water entered into a contract from April 2013 for a period of three years with a Water Service Provider for the operations
and maintenance of the existing Ultra Filtration (UF) Plant at its Ruensveld East Scheme. At the end of the contract, after having taken
over the poorly maintained UF Plant, Overberg Water sought quotations to repair the poorly maintained infrastructure as the Service
Provider has, to date, not repaired nor replaced any of the items listed on the issued snag list dated 17 May 2016. A dispute has
been declared and mediation through the various legal teams were explored. However, no final agreement has been reached. The
cost estimate to do the repairs amounts to R245 975.89 (inclusive of VAT).

The Minister of Water and Sanitation instituted a forensic audit against a board member. The member of the board undertook work of
Overberg Water before prior ministerial approval.
The estimated amount to be recovered from a board member is R74 809.22 contingent upon the finalisation of the forensic report.

26. Reclassifications
In order to achieve better disclosure, the entity made the following reclassifications during the year under review:

•

Operating lease asset to trade and other receivables.

•	
Direct costs of potable water to costs of potable water in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in order to calculate the cost
of water accurately.

•

Cash and cash equivalents has been reclassified to investments.

Comparative figures have also been restated.
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26.1 Financial position
The reclassification has resulted in the following:

As previously

Effects of

reported

reclassification

As restated

Statement of financial position
Trade and other receivables

6 769 445

(113 472)

6 655 973

154 534

113 472

268 006

1 479 628

45 344

1 524 972

45 344

(45 344)

–

8 448 951

–

8 448 951

Other receivables
Salary payables
Accruals

Trade and other receivables includes the prior year error adjustment of R46 854. This amount has been included as previously
reported. However, prior year error note has been disclosed in note 27.4.

26.2	Irregular expenditure note
Included in the 2015 financial statement is a note with regards to irregular expenditure which discloses incorrect balances. This was
due to human error and has been corrected in the current year.
2015

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:
As previously
reported

Classification of irregular expenditure
Construction contracts awarded to contractors not registered with the CIDB

2 701 859

Goods, works or service were not procured through a procurement process which is
fair, equitable, transparent and competitive

3 544 298

Expenditure where the points system in respect of the PPPFA was not used.

As restated

1 121 645

585 956
6 832 113

1 121 645

26.3 Commitments note
The 2015 figure for the second to fifth year operating lease as lessee commitment has been disclosed incorrectly. This was due to
human error and has been corrected in the current year.
2015

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:
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Disclosure of lease commitments: Operating leases – as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due – in second to fifth year

As previously
reported
530 185

As restated
503 185

26.4 Cost of potable water note
In 2015, the protective clothing expense was classified under operating expenditure. In 2016, the protective clothing expense
was included under the cost of potable water and the 2015 figure was reclassified from operating expenditure to the cost of
potable water to show the correct comparative figure.
As previously
reported 2015

Effects of
reclassification

Cost of potable water

25 415 614

11 105

25 426 719

Operating expenditure

7 425 469

(11 105)

7 414 364

32 841 083

–

32 841 083

The reclassification has resulted in the following:

As restated
2015

Statement of comprehensive income
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27. Prior Period Errors
27.1 Related parties
During the current year it was discovered that an incorrect disclosure was made with regards to the disclosure of related parties
during the previous year. Related parties transactions from Telkom were disclosed as transactions from Transnet and the correct
transactions with Transnet were omitted.
2015

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:
As previously

As restated

reported
– Telkom
Other income – Rent from servitude
•

Transactions for the year

–

(44 141)

(44 141)

(46 146)

– Transnet
Other income – Rent from servitude
•

Transactions for the year

During the current year it was discovered that not all related parties in regards with
servitude rent and trade receivables was disclosed during the previous year.
– Department of Transport and Public Works
Other income – Rent from servitude
Transactions for the year

–

(18 084)

•

Balances: Trade receivables

–

30 516

–

(44 141)

(44 141)

–

– Telkom
Other income – Rent from servitude
•

Transactions for the year

– Transnet
Other income – Rent from servitude
•

Transactions for the year

27.2	Income received in advance
2015

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:
As previously
reported
Revenue
Amounts received in advance

As restated

40 532 441

41 932 989

1 663 813

43 639
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27.3	Impairment of trade receivables
2015

The correction of the error results in adjustments as follows:
As previously
reported
Impairment allowance
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of trade and other receivables

As restated

(1 378 874)

(1 013 023)

239 354

(150 137)

27.4	Impact of prior year error
During the year, Overberg Water has discovered various omissions that relate to prior years. These omissions represent prior period
accounting errors which, in terms of IFRS standard, must be accounted for retrospectively in the Overberg Water Annual Financial
Statements for the year that ended 30 June 2016. As a results of these errors, Overberg Water has adjusted all affected comparative
amounts presented in the current period’s Annual Financial Statements as affected by these prior year accounting errors.
The nature of the prior period errors mainly relate to the following items:
Trade and other payables: R461 239 for overstating raw water payable prior 2014/15.
Investment: R189 263 for recognising Sanlam shares.
Dividend receivable: Recognising unclaimed dividends for Sanlam shares R 40 992 and R5 861 for 2014 and 2015 respectively.
Profit/loss() on share adjustment: For adjusting the market value of Sanlam Shares R18 236.
Other receivables: For recognising unclaimed dividend over the years R 40 992 and R5 861 for 2014 and 2015 respectively.
•
•

Recognising capital levy as revenue 2016 R1 400 548 and 2015 R219 626
Reversal of impairment of assets 2016 R365 851
The impact of these errors is summarised below and the details are
as follows:
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Increase/(decrease) in assets

2015
R

2014
R

389 950

230 256

(Increase)/decrease in liabilities

1 400 548

680 865

Increase/(Decrease) in net assets

1 790 497

911 121

(1 424 646)

(449 882)

365 851

(461 239)

(1 790 497)

(911 121)

Represented by:
(Increase)/decrease in accumulated surplus:
(Increase)/decrease in revenue
Increase/(decrease) in expenses
Effect on surplus/deficit
Effect on opening reserves

(911 121)
(2 701 619)

(911 121)
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27.5 Effects of prior year error
The following is the summary of corrections made in prior years to correct errors discovered to ensure completeness
and accuracy:

2015

2014

R

R

Statement of financial position
Trade and other payables
Investment
Amounts received in advance
Trade and other receivables
Impairment – Assets

–

461 239

18 237

189 264

1 400 548

219 626

5 862

40 992

365 851

–

1 790 497

911 121

(5 862)

(40 992)

–

(461 239)

(1 400 548)

(219 626)

(18 237)

(189 264)

(365 851)

–

(1 790 497)

(911 121)

(911 121)

–

(2 701 619)

(911 121)

Statement of comprehensive income
Dividend received
Raw water cost
Capital levy income
Other comprehensive income
Impairment – Expense

28

Effects of prior year error

The board was terminated by the Minister of Water and Sanitation on 21 June 2017. A new CEO (Acting) was appointed on 26 June
2017 and resumed duties on 4 July 2017 and will act as the accounting authority until such time that a new board was appointed by
the Minister of Water and Sanitation.
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Acronyms

Acronym

Term

AA

Accounting authority in terms of the PFMA

BBBEE

Broad based black economic empowerment

DWS

Department of Water and Sanitation

EA

Executive authority in terms of the PFMA

FMPPI

Framework for Managing Programme Performance Information

GRAP

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

IESBA

International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants

ISA

International Standards on Auditing

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

KPI

Key performance indicator

MFMA

Municipal Finance Management Act

NEMA

National Environmental Management (Act 107 of 1998)

NT

National Treasury

PAA

Public Audit Act (Act 25 of 2004)

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999)

PPPFA

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (Act 5 of 2000)

Overberg Water
Physical address: 1st Floor, Trident Park 2
1 Niblick Way, Somerset West, 7130

Tel: +27 21 850 0372
Email: info@overbergwater.co.za

Postal Address: Overberg Water
P.O. Box 1005, Somerset Mall, 7137

